
Lead Member for Environment and Community Safety 
Briefing 
The council is now holding virtual meetings. This plays a part in helping us to maintain 
the safety of the public, staff and councillors.

The City Mayor has asked that, as far as possible, there is still public involvement and 
input into the decision-making process.

Therefore, should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed, 
which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, by 
sending an email to the address at the bottom of this agenda.

Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place.

Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on 
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus 

DATE: Monday, 23 November 2020

TIME: 8.30 am

VENUE: Microsoft Teams Meeting

AGENDA

THE PROCEEDINGS OF THIS MEETING CAN BE VIEWED LIVE 
ON THE DAY VIA THE FOLLOWING LINK:
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3ameeting_NThlMWMyYjQtZThjOS00MDQ0LWFkM2EtMW
UxYWQzNGNjNWI1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%
2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-
3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-
938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d

1  Apologies 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Items for Decision - Part 1 (Open to the Public) 

3a Civica IT Upgrade (Pages 1 - 8)

4  Exclusion of the Public 

5  Items for Decision - Part 2 (Closed to the Public) 

Public Document Pack

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NThlMWMyYjQtZThjOS00MDQ0LWFkM2EtMWUxYWQzNGNjNWI1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NThlMWMyYjQtZThjOS00MDQ0LWFkM2EtMWUxYWQzNGNjNWI1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NThlMWMyYjQtZThjOS00MDQ0LWFkM2EtMWUxYWQzNGNjNWI1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NThlMWMyYjQtZThjOS00MDQ0LWFkM2EtMWUxYWQzNGNjNWI1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NThlMWMyYjQtZThjOS00MDQ0LWFkM2EtMWUxYWQzNGNjNWI1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NThlMWMyYjQtZThjOS00MDQ0LWFkM2EtMWUxYWQzNGNjNWI1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d


No items

6  Any other business 

Contact Officer:
Tel No:
E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


Part 1 – Open to the public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director for Place

To Lead Member for Environment and Community Safety
On 

23rd November 2020

 
TITLE:  Agreement for virement of capital resource to finance the upgrade of the  
Civica and Powersuite IT systems.  

RECOMMENDATION: 

Lead Member:

approves the virement of £0.200m within the 2020/21 Regulatory Services capital 
programme to finance the cost of the upgrade 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The current contract for two systems used by Regulatory Services and Cleansing  – 
Civica App (Regulatory Services software) and Powersuite (Refuse Collection 
Rounds Management Software), is coming to an end in March 2021. The software 
supplier for these systems is Civica. 

Corporate IT have undertaken an option appraisal and recommend that Civica are re-
contracted to provide upgraded web-based versions of both systems.  The upgrade 
can be undertaken as a capitalised on-off cost at £200k if an order is placed by 
December 21.  

Capital resource of £0.200m from the Regulatory Services Enforcement budget has 
been identified as being unable to be committed or spend this financial year.  As a 
result, approval is sought to vire this value of capital resource within the programme 
to finance the costs to enter into a contract and finance the initial cost of the upgrade. 
On-going support and maintenance will be financed from Regulatory Services revenue 
budget. 

Approval to re-contract with Civica will be sought at Procurement Board on the 25th 
November 2020. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3a



BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: N/A

KEY DECISION:  NO

DETAILS: 

1. Background

The Place capital programme is subject to robust monitoring and reporting processes 
to ensure effective and timely investment of resource associated with services under 
the Directorate.  

This process ensures Place DMT has visibility on any opportunities to maximise 
investment, finance new capital requirements or resolve emerging budget pressures 
across services in each financial year. 

This paper seeks agreement to vire £200k of available capital budget within 
Regulatory Services 20/21 capital programme to finance the upgrade of Civica to a 
web-based system. Place DMT have endorsed the virement. 

2. Proposal 

Background

The current contract for two systems – Civica App (Regulatory Services software) 
and Powersuite (Refuse Collection Rounds Management Software), is coming to an 
end in March 2021. The software supplier if Civica. 

Civica App has been in place for over 20 years and is used by Regulatory and 
Cleansing services in the Place directorate 

These include:

Food hygiene, health and safety inspections and complaints, noise and air quality 
complaints and investigations, antisocial behaviour and housing crime reduction 
work, work of the council’s dog warden service, infectious disease and accident at 
work investigations, food sampling. In addition, the system manages proceeds of 
crime investigations, illicit tobacco and counterfeiting investigations and other 
targeted work undertaken by the Trading Standards function in addition to receiving 
complaints and intelligence from the Citizens Advice Bureau.

Management of empties properties, landlord and HMO licensing schemes, property 
disrepair, accommodation certificates, gas safety contracts for registered social 
landlords and housing assistance schemes.

Page 2



Licensing – taxi drivers, operators and vehicles, premises and club premises 
licences, gambling licences.

Street scene – requests and complaints relating to street cleansing, refuse collection, 
litter, parks and their facilities, environmental crime including fly tipping and 
associated fixed penalty notices issued.

Use of the vired resource

While no ‘end of life’ date has yet been confirmed for Civica App, the current product 
is only receiving mandatory updates to service statutory obligations. 

All forward-thinking development is being channelled into a new product called 
Civica CX, which is a modern platform that offers key advantages, while satisfying all 
functionality within the current system. In brief, these are:

- The product allows staff to be digitally agile. The system is web based and 
can be accessed from any device with an internet connection

- The product is hosted by Civica, allowing upgrades and enhancements to be 
managed seamlessly by Civica, reducing system downtime and demand on 
DDaT (Digital Data and Technology) to maintain the system infrastructure.

- The product offers improved processing efficiency and reduced administration 
via process automation (where appropriate) and increases operationally 
active time, increasing the productivity of teams without the need for 
increasing team costs / staffing at a time when demands on the service are 
rising. This kind of functionality previously had to be developed within DDaT 
and this further alleviates the demands placed on the function.

- Improved citizen experience – meets the demand of the modern citizen and 
interacts with them in self-serve ways they find attractive and easy (e.g. 
online, email and SMS) For example, the system incorporates a citizen portal 
and booking functionality which allows full end to end processes to be 
managed within a single system. This reduces the need for integration with 
other services and is citizen focused by default.

- Automatic assignment, prioritisation and escalation of workload to ensure key 
performance indicators can be adhered to, enabling services to be truly citizen 
focused.

When considering whether to re-contract with Civica for the two systems it was 
considered, that:

- The full benefits of the Powersuite product had not yet been fully realised. The 
second phase of the project is ongoing, there was a desire and commitment 
to complete both phases of the project to enable improved service provision 
for the citizens of Salford. The Powersuite system has benefitted the refuse 
service operationally and the service wanted to retain the system moving 
forward.

- Regulatory Services had reviewed potential alternative software solutions and 
have spoken to colleagues at other local authorities about the systems they 

Page 3



use and obtained feedback. They have also reviewed Civica’s new Product 
(Civica CX) and made the decision that the new platform offers many 
advantages to enable them to react to changing demands / challenges and 
offer better experiences and services to the citizens of Salford. 

The options considered were:

Option 1
- Re-contract for the current systems (Civica App and Powersuite).

While this was a viable option, this was dismissed on the grounds that 
retaining the current system would not realise the benefits of adopting a 
modern and forward-thinking software platform. Modernising both our services 
and the existing system to suit our evolving citizen and operational needs 
would require us to continually develop services outside of the system to 
integrate to it, which would take longer to deliver and require greater 
involvement from DDaT. Our ability to react to changing needs/challenges 
would be diminished over time. 

Option 2
- Re-contract for Civica CX (replacement for Civica App) and Powersuite. This 

would include Salford retaining the current system (Civica App) and 
transitioning to the new system (Civica CX) during the early years of the 
contract. This option would include consultancy support form Civica - project 
management and training support for staff and the DDaT (Place systems) 
team to adopt and support the new system. The new system would enable the 
services using it to work more effectively and implementing new solutions and 
systems within the system quickly, would enable services to support our 
changing needs/requirements.

The recommended option is option 2 – enabling the council to future proof the system 
to support the user services through transition to the improved Civica CX platform and 
continuing the development of Powersuite to support the refuse collection service. 

In addition, this enables better support and services to Salford residents.

Source of resource for the virement

The proposed solution to finance the option 2, is to capitalise the initial cost of the 
upgrade at value of £200k via a virement of available resource that sits within the 
existing Regulatory Services 20/21 capital programme, this being: 

 Enforcement (planned acquisitions) – capital resource of £200k has been made 
available for re-investment on the basis it will not be committed or spent by 
March 2022. A budget of £500k remains in 20/21 to commit to the purchase of 
target properties by the Enforcement team within Regulatory Services. 

Once the upgrade is undertaken there will be a further £300k cost linked to training 
and consultancy costs provided by Civica alongside maintenance of the system over 
the lifetime of the contract. This will be met from Regulatory services revenue budget. 

Page 4



The estimated price of the initial upgrade of £200k is based on completion being made 
by Mar 21.  If an order is placed by the end of December 2020, the upgrade can be 
completed by March 21.  An order placed after December 2020 would result in an 
increased cost to £250k. 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: None

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

Assessment undertaken to ensure waste containers meet needs of users.  

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  

There is a low likelihood the resource being vired to finance the upgrade will be 
required from Enforcement team by March 21

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   

2020/21 Place capital programme

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

Virement

As set out in the Council’s Constitution, each directorate is allocated a budget amount 
as their share of the annual revenue budget approved by Council, and capital 
virements (movement of budgets between approved capital schemes) are permitted 
subject to the approvals being made by authorised persons as set out in section 7.4 
of the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules.  

For a virement of the amount requested, it would appear that section 7.4 (b) applies 
and the approval of lead member for financial and support services in consultation with 
the Chief Finance Officer is required. Section 7.4 reads as follows:

The person set out below shall be entitled to vire across budget heads or budget 
amounts as follows: 
a) a Chief Officer may vire between budget heads under their control and 

within their directorates £150,000 in any financial year. 
b) the Member(s) of the Cabinet for a relevant service area(s) may, with the

approval of the relevant Lead Member, vire between budget heads within 
their control sums of £150,000 and over, up to £350,000 in any financial 
year 

c) the City Mayor may vire sums up to £1,000,000 between the budget
amounts of different directorates in any financial year. 

Page 5



d) the Chief Finance officer shall be responsible for authorising all 
virements from the central inflation and contingency provision to other 
service budgets. 

e) any virement must be notified to the Chief Finance Officer and virements 
of above £150,000 must be reported for information to the next meeting of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Board. 

               f)  any revenue virement above £ 1,000,000 will require the approval of full 
                   Council. 
               g) Virements within the capital programme of above £350,000 up to 
                   £2,000,000 are subject to the approval of the lead member for financial 
                   and support services in consultation with the Chief Financial Officer
       
            

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: Alison Woods, Finance Officer (Capital)

The 2020/21 Capital Programme review identified an unsupported borrowing 
allocation of £0.200m, as being unspent and unrequired to the 31st March 2021, for 
the original bid purpose (Enforcement).  Further to consideration of the current position 
of the 2020/21 Place capital programme, Place DMT have endorsed the proposed 
virement of £0.200m. 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: Deborah Derbyshire x6244

Procurement will assist in any purchase activity ensuring the Civica upgrade is  
procured through a compliant framework which complies with the Procurement 
Contract Regulations and the Councils Contractual Standing Orders.  A report 
seeking agreement to raise an order to Civica will be presented to Procurement 
Board on November 25th 2020. 

__________________________________________________________________
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Mike Hemingway 

Civica upgrade will enable access and functionality via a web-based system.  This 
will allow users to remotely access the system and avoid having to make 
unnecessary journeys back to access the system and update via desk-based PCs. 
This will then reduce journey time and associated mileage and vehicle emissions.     

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

N/A. 

CONTACT OFFICER:   

Page 6



John Wooderson, Head of Urban Renewal, 793 2623

Ian Thompson, Principal Programme Manager, 793 2415.                 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): ALL

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3a Civica IT Upgrade

